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regulation thought only of what 
might be. • • -

But-correction is not in dogmatically 
applying another kind of idealism that 
seeks to write what might be in pro­
duction graphs and cost-benefit curves 
and looks not for the total reality.

Reality is that workers die violently, 
and reality is that many deaths' are 
avoidable. -

Either brand of dogmatism makes 
only controversy and strife, not prog­
ress. ' ■

Recently I fead ah old summation of 
an official report from last year that 
reviewed the handling of one series of 
accidents. .

The report found the investigators 
unconcerned with isolating the causes 

■ of the accidents but mightily con­
cerned with issuing citations. They 
had missed the point of their jobs.

I suggest that the point, and the re­
alistic thing, is to get about the busi­
ness of finding causes and remedies.

A LITTLE PIECE OF THE ROCK
(Mr. WYDEN asked and was given 

permission to address the House for 1 
minute and to revise and extend his 
remarks.)__  .

Mr. WYDEN. Mr. Speaker, in the 
. past few days I have. received^ hun­

dreds of letters in opposition to legisla­
tion aimed at curbing money market 
funds. I rise today in support of these 
funds which have given Americans of 
modest means a piece of the rock in 
our economy.

Two letters sum up the feelings of 
Oregonians who are writing me. The 
first is from a middle income wage 
earner who wrote:

For the first time in our lives, my wife and 
I believe we -are getting a fair share on our 
small life savings investment In the money 
market. For the first time, we are barely 
keeping up with .inflation because of the 
higher return from the money market.

A retired couple wrote:
George and Louise Jefferson of TV fame 

finally got' a pece of the pie. Retired folks 
like ourselves need to hang on to our piece, 
just to survive. Many of us have raised our 
children, built modest savings and Invested 
some of our assets in money market funds. 
We need our money market funds as a 
hedge against inflation.
Terhaps the best Une of all was the 

conclusion of this retired couple’s 
letter which said, "Everyone wants his 
piece of the pie, but it’s the small 
pieces held together by common need 
that keeps the pie whole.”

According to statistics, individual in­
vestors have sunk nearly $66 bilUon in 
money market funds. These investors 
include working couples^ retirees, near 
retirees, single men and women and 
even entire families who use money 
markets to save together and invest in 
a better future. They are everyday 
Americans. They are Americans with 
just a little bit extra who have to 
make every little bit count.

Letter after letter I have received re­
fleets a keen interest in saving, in in-

prospect of paying even steeper inter­
est for savings deposits, while still 
holding long-term loans at relatively 
low fixed rates.

But the issue is whether money 
market funds are a cause of the-finan­
cial industry’s woes. The answer is no. 
The cause runs much deeper, to issues 
such as overregulation of interest 
rates and banking operations, to errat­
ic management of UJ3. monetary 
policy and to perpetual Federal deficit 
spending that crowds private capital 
markets.

It is not money market funds that 
have brought down small banks and 
savings and loans institutions. They 
are caught in a profit squeeze because 
marketplace competition—egged -on by 
double-digit inflation—has driven up 
the cost of deposits while yields from 
investment portfolios, primarily mort­
gages, have not kept pace.

If money market funds disappeared, 
do not believe for a moment that all 
would be well with small banks and 
savings and loan institutions. The #66 
billion now invested in money market 
funds by small Investors would chase 
other high-interest bearing instru­
ments—and the cost of deposits would 
remain high for small banks and sav­
ings and loan institutions. Their prob­
lem would be the same.

carefully at a program to assist foun­
dering financial institutions.

I do know we head in the wrong di­
rection If we blimt money market 
funds, one of the few weapons the
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vesting in the future, In putting away average American has to battle Infla- 
a nest egg-exactly the goal we all " ‘ "
have been trying to achieve to help 
revive the American economy. Small 
investor after small investor has told 
me they are jolnlngin money market 
funds because they think it is the only 

- avenue open to them to stay even with 
inflation so what they have earned 
today will still be worth something to­
morrow.

tlon. It will create more than bitter­
ness. It will generate outrage because 
ft will say to Americans of modest

That is exactly the point I Want to 
underline today. Money market funds 
are successful because they allow a 
great cross section of America to 
combat inflation one-on-one, to defend 
what is theirs. Stripping small inves­
tors of this opportunity is like asking 
people to take off their coats in a 
snowstorm. .

Without doubt, the banking and 
thrift industries have a right to be 
concerned about a “level playing field” 
when it comes to offering instruments 
that are competitive with money 
market funds. And savings and loan 
institutions, which are suffering from 
disintermediation because inflation is 
high and people have withdrawn sav­
ings, are quite properly alarmed at the

means that the only piece of the pie 
they can get will be from the pie in 
the sky. . -

Americans want to save. They want 
to halt Inflation. They will do what is 
necessary to accomplish these goals— 
if we let them. They want more 
choices, not fewer choices. If any legls- 
lation is to be considered, let it be a 
measure that gives financial institu­
tions authority to compete with 
money market funds.

During my years as codirector of the 
Oregon Gray Panthers, I worked to es­
tablish a program so countless senior 
citizens could pool their meager sav­
ings and wind up with enough capital 
to make sound investments that re­
turned a fair yield. Everybody benefit­
ed. The seniors were pleased because 
they were getting more than the inter­
est on passbook aiccounts. For some se­
niors,-it was now worth it to get 
money out of pillowcases and shoe­
boxes, where before to them it never 
seemed to matter. Many financial in­
stitutions were pleased because more 
deposits rolled into their vaults, and 
stayed there. People who needed loans 
benefited because banks had more
money to lend. ' •

Money market funds are a logical 
extension of the modest program we 
developed in Oregon. They encompass 
the values of pooling resources for the 
benefit -of the saver, the financial in­
stitution, and the creditor. There is 
minimal risk, but there is a solid 
return.

The day will come when Congress 
balances the budget, the Federal Gov­
ernment gets out of the borrowing 
business and interest rates drop that 
money market funds may grow less at­
tractive. But I cannot foresee the day 
when the principle of allowing small 
savers and investors to band together 
will ever go out of style. Nor should it.

If capitalism means anything, it 
means that rich and not-so-rich alike 
can share in its risks—and its fruits. 
Why should only -the wealthy have 
access to investment instruments with 
appealing returns? Savings pools and 
money market funds—and instruments 
yet to be developed—assure that the 
Uttle guy gets a piece of the action, 
too. „ ,

SELECT COMMITTEE ON 
ASSASSINATION .

I do not pretend to have the solution 
that will salvage the thrift industry in 
this country which is so vital to main­
taining a sound housing industry. Per­
haps new types of mortgages will help. 
Certainly achieving a balanced budget ___________ ___
and getting the Federal Government remarks and 
out of the borrowing business will 
help. Maybe soon we will need to look

(Mr. STOKES asked and was .given 
permission .to address the House for 1 
minute and to revise and extend his

include ■ extraneous
matter.)

Mr. STOKES. Mr. Speaker, as the 
former chairman of the Select Com­
mittee on Assassination, I have, from 
time to time, reported to the House 
about events that have transpired 

_ since -the committee, completed its

CIA HISTORICAL REVIEW PROGRAM! *9*73
RELEASE IN FULL 1998. ^^^
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work in July 1979.1 rise now to bring 
!? attention of the House several 
items. - .
t?1;;!^ November 1980 issue, the 
Washingtonian printed a less than fa­
vorable article about the work of the 
select committee by one of its former 
“Viators. Gaeton Fonzi. The com­
mittee s former chief counsel. Prof. Q, 
f? » ,B^ey' Wh° now teaches at 
the Notre Dame JLaw School, and its 
former deputy chief counsel, Gary 
Cornwell, wrote responses to Mr. 
Fonzi s piece. While Professor Bla­
keys short letter was published, Mr. 
Cornwell’s fuller treatment" was not 
S^ut1 brieve these two statements 
should be part of the historical record, 
I ask that they be printed in the Con­
gressional Record at the conclusion 
of my remarks.

^l,on’ Professor Blakey and 
Billinas, a key aid on die 

select committee’s staff, have just pub- 
Hshed through the New York Times 

T<> Km the Presi- 
effort to go beyond the findings of the select eom- 

"nd name those who were 
behind the President’s death. The au- 
tnors asked me and our former col- 

Richardson Preyer, who was 
the chairman of the JFK Subcommit­
tee, to prepare forewords for possible 
inclusion In the book. As it turned out, 

manuscript exceeded its contract- 
ed-for length by over 50,000 words 
and the editors at Times Books asked 
Professor Blakey and Mr. Billings to 
cut the manuscript down considerably, 

was not, therefore, possible to in- 
Preyer’s and my remarks in 

«eI?^hed hooh- Nevertheless, I 
would like to share them wlththe 

I ^ ^ they be Included 
m the CommEssioNAi. Record at the 
conclusion of my remarks. 1

Finally, Mr, Speaker, I note that on 1 
December 1, 1980, the Department of 1 

. reIeased a report of the Tech- ' 
meal Services Division of the Federal 
?lr5a? investigations on the acous- 

of the select committee. 
The FBI report found that the sclen- 

- title work done by the select commit­
tee was invalid. Although I asked the 
“epartaient to work with our former 
Staff and Its scientists, the work was 
^“e to^t'and the rai "Port was 
released before anyone connected to 
the select committee had a chance to 
look at It. We had hoped that coUabo- 
ration would have been possible, since 
truth, not one-upmanship in public re-

^^ was at stake. We had — wivmer example: Mr Fonzi 
S®! too’ !? aVod niisunderstand- Bootes me as saying that the committee?S 
s^A°r JJt^ that the Technical -SKn ^.F0?8 to 4,6 the "last investl- 
Services Division was relatively inex- ^t.' “ E1 had arrogantly believed that 
perienced in the acoustical field. The “ ‘--------- - ------ *
Department of Justice, however, did 
not choose to collaborate, and it must 
now suffer the consequences. Profes­
sor Blakey and our' scientists have 
2Eef.ully reviewed the work of the 
FBI Insofar as It was possible from the 
incomplete data released and have de­
termined that the FBI fundamentally 
misunderstood our scientific arid evi-

I den,tlaF, analysis. There was, in short. 
I no Justifiable basis for the FBI conelu- 

sion that our work was invalid. Profes­
sor Blakey has given me a memoran- 

131 report, as have our 
scientists. I ask that they be printed in 
the CoNGREssxoNAL Record at the con­
clusion of my remarks. ' .
hoWKe fete ?ffded ^hon^™d to'each of Mr. ^ 

ff-srixs ‘»w^^^ 

non and National Academy of Bel- ^oyed him in the first instance. As an in- 
» * study of ^ ’ *
। ^^tional work should be done 
5 When that study fe com-

1 make a decision. Until 
that time* I will continue to keep the 
House Informed of items relating to 
the work of the former select commit­
tee. -

On that score, I readily concede that I 
turned out to be wrong. We did make a 
major ^breakthrough—the development of 
scientific and other, evidence showing two 
“f ooters to the plaza—but nothing that the 
Department of Justice has done since our 
final report shows any sign of a willingness 
on its part to reopen the investigation.

I'have, however, neither the time nor the

vestlgator for Senator Richard Schweiker" 
ne had come upon a lead that purported to 
connect Lee Harvey Oswald to the CIA. He 
was convinced that he had the answer to 
the meaning of the President’s death. (Staff 
members decisively referred to him as an 
"M^byoK0 ^ ^ “ * “^ ,M

The material referred to above fol. 
lows; .
The JFK Assassination: A “Great White 

. . Whale”! .
I write to Kt the record straight, at least 

tas^ar as a two-page letter can adequately 
respond to an 80,000-word article, Gaeton 
torch* "Wh0 ^ed JFK?” fNovember AVOUJ. - . t
rf^' ^ thesis is that the investigation 
Of the House Select Committee on Assassi­
nations was a fraud. For those who care 
2?U»Me truth, I refer them to the commit- 
^h?«W? «naJ rep0lt and lte accompa- 
^i?LTdu?2,ofJ?pportta« hearings 
and related materials. They speak for them-

^ Fnnzi soes beyond a general char- 
of the public portion of the 

—^tt^es work and levels a number of 
specific charges against me personally. Each 
taitarthbtK^eri^mply ,alse OT’ worse, a 
half-truth that misleads by what ft omits. 
Their Publication without giving me an o& 
^“’ih' to respond was shoddy journal-

Nonetheless, I decided to retain him be- 
eause I thought that his obsession would 
S3? ^“rf.that his aspect of the commlt- 
rltaretmtion (Mr. Fonzi was but one 
investigator on one of two teams of lawyers 
JS?a^h^”’Jand investigators working on 

leads; he headed neither team) 
would receive its full due. In fact, ft con­
sumed a significant portion of our re­
sources—personnel, money, and time. 
sZl’LS'SJ?*1' investigation fafled to 
find Fonzik “Great White Whale,” not be­
cause we-Fonzi and I-dld not try but M- 

the,evidence was not there. Mr.
111 ^ ^ not the truth 

about the committee’s investigation but a 
rad self-revelation of a single man’s mono­man i ft, .

,Mte “i6 ex“nP’e: Mr. Fonzi suggests 
^wSS* ^i^ “ywUgation profession­
S klaJed. believing that organized crime 
had had a hand m the President’s death. 
SSL, e’.,?I,fact’ 1 Personally thought it 
K8h^ that a conspiracy had led to 
the assassination and that, if It had. it 
would not have .included organized crime, as 
KL^8?*11?1 01 016 President would 

too risky a venture for the mob.
1 ^ not let’my personal feel­

ings affect my professional conduct.
«2S J?-!0 ^tably finite resources, the 
SS J^! Investigation was, therefore, 
structured to pursue all conspiracy hypoth- 
S„tadu?n8ll,,ost importantly, official 
«V3ln’nent’n5heth®r domestic or foreign, 
“well 5s those embracing a variety of 

«roups Within our society, not excluding organized crime.
^t ^^ “0Vler example: Mr. Fonzi

O. Robert Blakey,
. Professor of Law, 

Notre Dame Law School. 
Js^-?^ was chief counsel and 
staff director of the House Select Commit­
tee on Assassinations.)

At Issue: A Full and Complete Investiga- 
2“®' »he Assassinations or President 
HENMEDY

(A response to “Who killed JFK?" by Gaeton 
Fonzi in the Washingtonian) .

(By Gary Cornwell, Deputy Chief Counsel, 
House Select Committee on Assassination)

careful reading of “Who 
killed JFK? by Gaeton Fonzi (The Wash- 
“rtenian. November 1980) to realize the 

was 10 Credit the Investlgri 
&lect Committee on As­

sassinations. Ndf must a reader be especially 
well-versed on the subject of the Kennedy 

.^ Ben,eral °r the Committee 
investigation in particular to recognize that 

who served as a Committee investiga­
tor, had his own pet theory about the assas- 

he M,ulred ^ 
even existed- and that his 

failure to document the validity of this 
a source of deep frustration. 

(Fonzi s theory, which is based on the testi- “ vx^-castro Cuban exUeX 
ttat a8ents of the Central S?T»KFScyIJhad masterminded the 

President. For eveldenee, he 
Veciana s statement that on one 

occasion Lee Harvey Oswald met with a 
mysterious individual, an apparent ihtelli- 
S ag®®t.who was known to Veclana as 
Maurice Bishop.) The article does, however

Verei distortions of fact and falla­
cies in reasoning which may have escaned tigation arid 'b^o^aZE ?& “±U°? 01 ^«««MS with M 

tn i iiurfi.i Mn.i,..<—>—orts ited access to reliable information distor- 
. u tlons and fallacies that were the result of

'SS^nS^iS *? Or subtract from any- 
SJl^L?^ A half-truth. In fact, I 
^.h^ be °lel?3t ^vesUgation unless 
k^^- a major breakthrough that 
radically changed the view not only of the 

S^S.® ^v^0 °* lte wvcnmen- 
Sn. ^ shout those tragic events in 
Dallas seventeen years ago. If so. -we then 
»ithe reasonable expectation that the De- 
h^.?1 ^ J?1" w°uM reopen the inves-
W" . - - ------ —o *** wiifijuBoiunaj tHQ

a lawful conclusion in a judicial forum.
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Fonzi’s bias, his frustration, and his appar­
ent naivete. ■ . -

Most Aihericans, I believe, have an appro­
priate interest in the .Kennedy assassina­
tion. They want to know who killed their 
President They want to know whether they 
can rely upon the findings of the Warren 
Commission In 1964 and the Bouse Select 
Committee in -1978. But -because most 
people do not have the time and resources 
to seek the answers to their questions, they 
must rely to a considerable degree on what 
they are told by presumed experts like 
Fonzi. When they are told the government 
did not conduct an effective investigation 
and are led to believe that the .CIA—or at 
least certain officials of that agency—had a 
hand in the President’s death, more is lost 
than their faith in the American system of 
government: government policy is affected. 

- Readers of The Washingtonian are the deci­
sion makers—members of congress, execu­
tive branch officials, politicians. Judges, and 
citizens who cast votes^who will dictate the 
future conduct of such Investigations; and it 
is they who wiU decide if and hbw the gov­
ernment, including the CIA, will be 
changed. Thus; if reliance upon "eye-wit­
ness” accounts such as Fonzi’s is misplaced, 
if his attitudes and criticisms, however spu­
rious, are made convincing by his talents as 
a writer, national policy of the future will 
be based on erroneous assumptions to our 
mutual detriment. For this reason the arti­
cle merits careful analysis.

It may initially be helpful to consider 
what the article is not. It is not, as it pro­
claims to be, an article by a "top U.S. gov­
ernment investigator.” Fonzi is a Journalist 
by trade, and he was but one of many inves­
tigators employed by the Select committee. 
Although the article is title, "Who Killed 
JFK?”, it does not provide an answer to that 
question. And while The Washingtonian 
boasts that the author broke “his oath of si­
lence,” thereby suggesting some grand pur­
pose is to be served by the daring revela­
tions to follow, the article is in fact little 
more than a retelling of Veciana’s story of 
the mysterious Maurice Bishop (which the 
Select Committee had already published in 
its final report), embeUished by Fonzi’s 
speculations and opinions.

It is those speculations and opinions that
are most troubling and detrimental, but 
before considering them in detail it might 
help to put them in perspective by taking a 
closer look at Veciana’s story. To attempt to 
resolve the question, "Who Killed JFK?” by 
focusing exclusively upon the testimony of 
Antonio Veciana, as Fonzi does, a number of 
other questions must be answered. Was 
there a Maurice Bishop? If so, what was his 
real name and affiliation? (Fonzi speculates 
that Bishop worked for the CIA, dismissing 
the possibility "that he was employed by an­
other intelligence agency, domestic or for­
eign, or by some private organization.) Did 
Bishop really have an encounter with 
Oswald? (Veciana could be credible but mis- „ lv unmu^ 

observations, which he him- thing as important as 
self described as brief and fleeting. Such - 
eyewitness accounts are Widely viewed, at 
least by lawyers, as suspect.) Finally, even if 
Bishop did meet with Oswald, what was the 
significance? (While Fonzi would have his 
readers infer a connection between the 
meeting and the assassination, several other 
explanations are equaUy plausible, especial­
ly if we, like Fonzi, are constrained only by 
the limits of our Imagination.) .

These are all interesting questions, and 
they were so regarded by the Committee, 
which investigated them to the extent possi­
ble. But in Fonzi’s suggestion that Veciana’a 
story reveals who killed President Kennedy 
anything more than irresponsible myopia? 
does the Importance of Veciana’s account go
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SiLS^ 2!iS was the issue that power in the hands of any one institution) 
S^hH^S'W’41^'1!"* tapor- and civil liberty protections. Because our to-

8 ““Wonthat Ve- vestlgattons are so limited, there are mlnl- ciana’s testimony did not establish CIA com- ~ ‘^re are mini
plicity .adequate cause for asserting that its 
investigation was a "bureaucratic charade”?

Taken at face value, Veciana’s story estab­
lished no more than the following: he was 
associated in his antl-Castro activities with a 
man known to him as Maurice Bishop; 
Bishop appeared to have intelligence ties.

Lee Harvey Oswald. Anything more is sheer ^ ^ biyestigations, even those 
speculation. There fc^lSomUon M to concerning crime. -.. ------.. ..
who employed Bishop, and there is no evi­
dence that Bishop either had foreknowledge 
of or participated in the Assassination. (Ve­
ciana specifically said he had no answers to 
these crucial questions, and efforts by Fonzi 
and the Committee to shed light oh them 
independently were not successful.)

Fonzi’s articleis not, then, a revelation of 
"Who Killed JFK," nor is it an expose of 
what “insiders know.” What it is is one 
man’s speculation about the CIA and his 
opinion of the Committee. Fonzi’s frustra­
tion at not being able to prove a CIA plot is 
perhaps understandable; the way he has 
chosen to vent it, however, is not He blames 
his frustration on insidious forces, intimat­
ing that had it not been for a continuing 
conspiracy (apparently between the CIA 
and the Committee) to keep him "very, very 
busy and eventually ... wear [him] down,” 
he could have established his case against 
Bishop and the CIA This assessment of 
blame and unsupported speculation would 
not be so harmful if expressed privately or 
idly pondered by those who make no pre­
tense of having “inside” information. It 
Seems that nearly everyone I meet has his 
own theory about the assassination, and 
perhaps due to the character of the Presi­
dent and the nature of his death, emotional 
attachments to particular theories often de­
velop. to that respect, Fonzi may be in good 
company—at least numerically. But Fonzi 
has now proclaimed himself an expert on 
the assassination, arid his theory and his 
opinion of the Committee, by their publica­
tion in the Washingtonian, have gained a 
measure of credibility. So it is not enough to 
answer Fonzi by simply stating he is wrong. 

Fonzi begins with a reference to the Com­
mittee’s mandate. House Resolution 222, 
which called for “a full and complete inves­
tigation and study of the circumstances sur­
rounding the assassination and death of 
President John F. Kennedy. . . .” He then 
asserts that, “like the Warren Commission, 
what the House Assassinations Committee 
did not do was 'conduct a full and complete 
investigation,’” and opines that ". .. what 
the Kennedy assassination still needs Is an 
investigation guided simply, unswervingly 
by the . priority of truth.” Finally, Fonzi 
asks, "Is it unrealistic to desire, for some­

- —------ 1 the assassination of a
President, an investigation unbound by po­
litical, financial, or time restrictions?” Al- 
thoughhe apparently Intended the question 
to remain rhetorical, it merits ah explicit 
answer. Clearly, when you stop to think 
about it, the answer is yes, at least in this 
country, it is unrealistic. " "

mal criteria to test the sufficiency of the in­
vestigative efforts, at least whenever life or 
liberty is at stake: the short form expression 
of that test of minimum sufficiency is 
‘■proof beyond a reasonable doubt” Only in 
the world of Perry Mason must investiga­
tions produce conclusions with absolute cer- 
talnty. In the real world, at least in this

concerning crimes "as Important as the as­
sassination of a President”, are not guided 
"simply, unswervingly by the priority of 
truth.”; ■
' Should the death of a President be 

deemed sufficient cause for changing our 
system of government? Should the Commit­
tees’ first chief counsel, Richard A. Sprague, 
Whom Fonzi appears to admire, have been 
granted what Fonzi believes he wanted: - 
total power, and unlimited financial backing 
and time to pursue "the truth”? Should the 
political limitations have been removed so 
Sprague could have had unrestricted access 
to the CIA’s computer system, its central in­
dices, and all of its "raw” investigative files? ' 
Can we dismiss the CIA’s interest in pre­
serving its sensitive sources and methods as 
being of no national concern? Or is It that 
Sprague should have been given the last 
word on their protection Dr abrogation, so 
that the search for “the truth” would have 
had no roadblocks in its path? And what if 
in the end—after all CIA files had been re­
viewed and all agency officers, agents, and 
employees had been questioned under 
oath—there still was no absolute proof of 
Fonzi’s theory? In the absence of a CIA con- ■ 
fession. what then? Mass administration of 
truth serum? Jail terms for the recalcitrant 
at Sprague’s whim? Or, perhaps Congress : 
should then assume absolute power, taking ; 
over the executive branch. But, even with 
absolute power, financial and time restric­
tions would still exist. Suppose Sprague 
wanted everyone who watched the motor­
cade in Dallas in November 1963 to be inter­
viewed, no matter how long it took? And if 
his owii investigative resources were insuffi­
cient, should Sprague have had the Dallas 
Police Department put at his disposal? 
Should we be willing to forgo policing the ‘ 
city of Dallas until the President’s murder is • 
solved? Until the CIA is proven guilty. .

In his article -Fonzi describes me as 
“brashly pragmatic.” If that means I tried 
to make the most of the investigation, given 
the inherent political, financial; and time 
constraints, I take the characterteation as a . 
compliment. Nor do I object to the applica- •
tion.of hindsight to assess performance and .
suggest what might have been done better, ' 
for I readily admit that some mistakes were ? 
made. I would never say that criticism of 
how the federal government too often oper- : 
ates is not needed. Nor would I suggest that ' 
so-called exposes of the inner workings of ; 
government, to be of value, must come from i, 
an unbiased source. I have spent my entire 
professional career working for the federal ; 
government, and much of my energy has 
been expended in criticizing the policies, ’ 
procedures, and performance of the agen- ■ 
Mes I have encountered. I believe, however, • 
that my criticisms have been—in intent and 
effect—constructive. Most of Fonzi’s critl- ; 
cisms, on the other hand, are not construe- ■ 
tiye: they are based on gross distortions of 
the facts; they are Impractical, and they 
serve only to undermine the credibility the

Every day, citizens of this country are sen­
tenced to long terms of incarceration, and' 
occasionally even put to death, as the result 
of investigations that are not "unbound by 
political, financial or time restrictions.1’ The 
time and financial restrictions result from 
the budgetary limitations of our police 
“SiMl" U*“J w uiiaermine me creaiblll
political restrictions arise from our basic Committee’s ’ investigation deserves ' 'rhe system of checks and balances (limited. Commlt^dkSuM^
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investigation.” when that phrase is taken in 
context -and the evaluation is based on 
common sense and reality; pursuit of the 
-truth was the guiding'objective, If not the 
-only consideration; and for Fonzi to pro­
claim that the /Committee’s investigation 
was no better than thatof the Warren Com­
mission is on abuse of his abilities and repu­
tation. —

The majority of my professional career 
has involved the trial of cases in federal 
court, and from that experience I’ve found 
that, everyone has bis own biases, preju­
dices, preconceptions. Not a single witness 
at any trial, nor a single juror sworn to de- 
termlne the facts, nor even a judge, per­
forms his duty in a vacuum divorced from 
the experiences of his life and the impres­
sions they have made upon him. Yet the re­
sponsibilities of those persons—to testify 
truthfully, to weigh the evidence, to judge- 
are usually performed with a sufficient 
degree of objectivity. On the other hand, 
certain safeguards are built into a trial to 
minimize the effect of prejudice and its re- 
tated influences (safeguards that ton often 
have no counterparts ta the pubUcation of a 
magazine article). Witnesses are subject to 
cross-examination; jurors are “excused” 

when their level of bias seems 
too high: and cautionary instructions are 
given Co the jury. An example of the latter 
safeguard is the common instruction on 
evaluating the credibility of witnesses: 

“You as jurors, are the sole judges of the 
credlbfltty of the witnesses ■and the weight 
their testimony deserves. * • • You. should 
Ruefully scrutinize aH the testimony given, 
the circumstances under which each witness 
has testified, and every matter ta evidence 
which tends to Indicate whether a witness is 
worthy of belief. Consider each witness* in­
telligence. motive and state of mind, and de­
meanor and manner While on the stand. 
Consider also any relation each witness may 
bear to either side of the case; the manner 
ta which each witness might be affected by 
she verdict: and the extent to which, if at 

each witness is either supported on con­
tradicted by other evidence ta the case. In- 
eonslstencies or discrepancies ta the testi­
mony of a witness, or between the testimo­
ny of different witnesses, may or may not 
cause the jury to discredit such testimony. 
Two or more persons witnessing an incident 
or a transaction may see or hear it differ- 
entiy; and innocent misreeoUection, like fail­
ure of recollection, is not an uncommon ex­
perience. In weighing the effect of a discrep­
ancy, always consider whether it pertains to 
a matter of importance or an -unimportant 
detail, and whether the discrepancy results 
from innocent error or intentional false- 

making your own Judgment, you 
will give the testimony of each witness such

“ You think it deserves.” BW or an cigar 
a wltn^PteP£Tv^k^^ ^ our ““^d resources to'that subjeci
thatT^rej  ̂ ^ffi^W “ “‘‘^

government should function, should be 
carefully weighed. What can be relied upon 
with some, if not total, confidence are recit­
als of events Fonzi witnessed. In fact, the 
precision with which Fonzi is able to recite 
conversations indicates .he was recordtag 
them verbatim. (The time it must have 
taken to record conversations with other 
staff members makes me wonder if it was 
the preparation of his diary, not the de­
mands of the Committee as Fonzi contends, 
that kept him “so very, very busy and even­. tually. . ------ • • - - ------

since he was not employed by the Commit­
tee as its historian. Did he set out from the 
beginning snore Interested in plying his 
trade as a . Journalist than in investigating 
the assassination? Further Indications of 
Buch bad faith, and thus lost credibility, 
arise when Fond purposefully omits rele­
vant details from conversations so as to dis­
tort theirmeaning. By way of example only, 
there to this colloquy in the article:

“When I joined the Committee, I thought 
... analytical reports would be especially 
useful because there was ho other investiga­
tor wlthmy experience....

, “Cornwell fold me to stop them. 1 want 
your reports to be strictly factual.’ he said. 
Just give us the information. I don’t want 
any of your analysis going into the record.* 
That, I said, would require ignoring the va- 
lidlty of the sources of information... . ’All 

. right,’ Cornwell said, ’if you want to analyze 
the information, put it cm separate yellow 
paper and I’ll tell the mail room not to log it 
in.’ I came to refer to this procedure as the 
•Yellow Paper Floy.”’

Fonzi omitted the explanation I gave for 
what he calls the "Yellow Paper Ploy,” I 
told him I wanted the staff and the eommlt- 
tee to be able to form its conclusions cm the 
basis of the greatest quantity of informa­
tion possible, and that meant that those 
conclusions should not be drawn until the 
end of the investigation after all available 
facts had been gathered. Since Fonzi. even 
at that early stage of the investigation, had 
already reached a conclusion of CIA com­
plicity. be was obviously irritated when I re­
fused to permit him to place tills conclusion 
in our official record.
..There are other distortions in the article

“J JfcnsJ’V credibility as a witness. - ---------------- uauwuum irom
Chief Counsel G. Robert -effective scrutiny and criticism. Yet the 

makey stacked" the staff with organized criticisms of the FBI. CIA. Secret Service 
crime experts tn an effort to prove a Mafia ”“■* ”------ “------- ’ ’ ’
conspiracy. Who are these experts? (The ar­
ticle does not identity them.) Were they as­
signed to all of our investigative teams, re­
gardless of the subject area for which the 
team was responsible? (The article does not 
say.) The fact is that apart from Blakey and 
me and two attorneys who were successively 
in charge of the team investigating orga­
nized crime (where you might expect to find 
some expertise on the subject area), there 
were no staff lawyers with previous experi­
ence in organized crime investigations.

Thus,.if the investigation was misdirected 
by the influence of “organized crime ex­
perts," the influence could only have been 
exerted by Blakey or me. Yes, even Blakey 
and I are subject to the influence of our 
Prior experiences, but Fonzi does not truth­
fully discuss the probable effect of that In­
fluence, or bias, if you will. He writes that 
we were predisposed to emphasize the possi- 
billty of an organized crime plot, and to

the relative strengths of the evidence, nor is 
he qualified to do so. His work for the Com­
mittee was restricted to his special area of 
interest the antl-Castro Cubans, and he fur­
titer confined himself by concentrating dog­
gedly on a Veclana-Bishop-Oswald link.
_Fanri claims that the investigation was a 
bureaucratic charade, that what was Impor­
tant was not "what you do, but how what 

. you do looks in relation to how everything 
else you did looks.” He suggests that Chief 
Counsel Blakey’s orfly objective was to pro- 

the standing tastitutions of govern* 
ment—namely, the CIA—and not to investi­
gate them. These allegations, I believe, are 
so patently false that they must be labeled 
Cither the product of a blindtag bias, or as 
conscious, willfull misstatements. I suggest 
to those who can find the time that they 
evaluate FonzTs, charges in Ught of what 
new information the Committee developed 
and What it said about It. Contained in the 
Committee’s report and 12 volumes of 
backup evidence is much new information 
about the assassination, information that 
no govenmental body had ever previously 
evaluated, ft was on the basis of this Infor- 
nation that the Committee was able to 
reach conclusions that seemed inconceivable 
when the investigation began and'even now 
seem so extraordinary that their signlfi- 
cance is difficult to grasp: President Kenne­
dy was probably assassinated as the result 
of a conspiracy, and the federal government 
15 years ago, when the assassination could 
have been most effectively investigated, 
botched the case. ■

Fonzi derogatorQy describes Blakey and 
me as “hired hands" ; whose sole objective 
was to shield government institutions from

•nd Warren Commission set forth in the 
Committee’s report, which was prepared 
under the direction of Blakey and me, are 
both extensiveand pointed. (By making his 
charge, Fonzi demonstrates his ignorance of 
the number of man-hours expended in com­
piling the data that led to our findings that 
the performance of those agencies had been 
less than adequate.) Had it uncovered credi­
ble evidence of conspiracy on the part of the 
CIA or any other government agency, which 
it did not, the Committee would have said 
so. But the important point is that we did 
look for such evidence, and owing primarily 
to the talents of Chief Counsel Blakey and 
the ability and stature of Committee Chair­
man louis Stokes, the search was carried 
out in a reasonably effective manner (given, 
among other minor annoyances, the fact 
that Congress does not, and should not, 
have absolute power over the executive 
branch).

ganized crime would not have killed the 
President, because historically the mob has 
not employed violence against government 
officials. Furthermore, as the investigation 
progressed, we devoted equivalent time and 
resources to each of the prominent conspir­
acy theories, focusing equally upon the pos­
sibility of Involvement by the "various gov­
ernment agencies, but organized crime, by 
agents of the Soviet Union or Cuba, by antl- 
Castro Cubans, and so on. In the end the 
Committee’s conclusions werebased on the

MS Xrnn^y ^ Nation by othuSSi mtal

. For the first time in history, Congress ne­
gotiated ah agreement with the CIA for 
“unsanitized" access to its files. Admittedly, ' 
the agreement was not foolproof: the CIA 
possibly could have selectively withheld or 
destroyed files before turning them over to 
the Committee. Measures, however, were de­
vised to prevent that. The fUes contained 
cross-references, for example, which could 
and often did lead our staff to request relat­
ed documents. In addition, we interviewed 
former and current CIA officers about the 
nature of the agency filing system general­
ly, and about'the identity and location of 
particular files that might assist our invest!- 
gation. While these safeguards still do not 
make the agreement foolproof, it was, I be­
lieve, the best that could be reached given 
the circumstance of two separate and inde­
pendent branches of government.

As I said, our investigation, like any 
human endeavor, can be constructively criti­
cized using the benefit of hindsight I am re-
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minded by Ponzi's article of two Issues that 
Blakey and I pondered during the investiga­
tion. which we perhaps should have derided 
differently. The first has to do wlth staff se­
lection. We were aware of the possible ef­
fects of bias upon the functioning of our 
staff, and While we tried to secure as much 
expertise as possible (e.g. an attorney expe­
rienced in organized crime Investigations to 
ran the team assigned to that area of the in­
vestigation), we-also tried to avoid hiring 
anyone who had previously worked on the 
Kennedy case and might have preconceived 
notions about it. We made only a very few 
exceptions to that rale: one was Gaeton 
Fonzl. : - .

The second issue we pondered involved 
the size of our Investigative staff, which 
consisted primarily of homicide detectives. 
It was of the highest quality, consisting of 
dedicated professionals. But for one signifi­
cant reason Oils was not a typical homicide 
investigation: we were 15 years late. Cover-
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It comesat* price. Maybe bookeerloualy, I do not necessarily share all 

*.??? 01 Blakey’s and Billings’s individual condu- 
** ””" * ' -- -- i* sions. Let. me start by explaining the-man­

date of our Committee,-as it was set out to
"fun and complete investigation." No doubt, 
he wptfld have had more power to -do iso to 
t? h/tS^rrtSihfti.^iw^ wasxrant- „„ wmawMBi, WUBU WHB pas^i vy me 

JSlT' Houre ert Representatives tn September 
m K ®“ J* summed up ta three simple £rt^fs™*^Mm?S^“.°™ Presl- questions: Who assassinated President ken- 

oent, our investigations include some com- nedy and Dr -Kins* (The Kennedv •musi. of ^wX^XX
SS8*11 Stokes, often contain some noose gation; the other was the murder of Dr. 

; ■ - ,___■ Martin IsitoerXing,Jr.) Did the assassin or
Statement by Louis Stokes, Chairman, 

House Select Committee on Assassins- 
tions
"When I-became chairman of the House 

Select Committee on Assassinations in 
March 1977, I faced a series .of immediate 
crises. The Committee’s ftmdlng resolution 
had barely been approved by the Tipuse, and 
confidence in our ability to accomplish our 
work with dignity and objectivity was not 
high. But I knew what needed to be done, 
and one of my first tasks was to appoint a 
new chief counsel and staff director. After 
the resignation of the original chief counsel

nor John B. Connally vividly made the 
point when he appeared at our hearings. He 
said he had traveled over the world since 
1963. and every one he had talked to eould 

, remember with precision where they were 
when they first heard that President Ken­
nedy had been assassinated. On the other 
band, we found in our investigation that 
most people had no recollection whatever of 
where they were on the mdrintog of Novem- 

. ber 22, or the day before, or the week 
before This does hot mean that our investl- 

. gators were of ho value. Oh the contrary, 
they gathered valuable Information about 
relationships between individuals of interest 
to us, and they performed other very useful 
functions. (Most significantly, it was our in­
vestigative staff that made the most tmpor- 
tant discovery of all: ft turned up the Dallas 
police dispatch tape, which ultimately es­
tablished that two gunmen fired at the 
President.) But due to the lapse of 15 years 
we were forced to rely more heavily oh an 

.analysis of scientific data and on ateview of 
voluminous files of government agencies, 
such as the FBI, CIA, and Secret Service, 
that contained data recorded in 1963 and 
earlier years, and somewhat less on tradi­
tional investigative techniques. This shift in 
emphasis away from traditional tovestlga- 
five techniques was frustrating for many of 
our investigators, and it made Blakey and 
me wonder whether we should not have re­
tained a somewhat smaller investigative 
staff, and spent more of our limited re­
sources and time on scientific analysis and 
file reviews.

Such second-guessing of our investigation 
notwithstanding, 1 believe the American 
people got a comprehensive investigation. 
We did not answer all the questions, but we 
did focus our attention on the major areas 
of interest. Further, we took a hard look at 
those specific Issues in each area that ap­
peared likely to shed new light on the relat- 

. ed questions of conspiracy and the perform­
ance of government agencies In 1963-1964. 

; An excerpt from Ponzi’s article is worth 
repeating, since Its significance" apparently 
escaped him when he wrote ft. In the

and staff director, we were, so to speak, an 
army With a new commander-ln-chief but no 
field general In April 1 appointed a task 
force headed by Congressman Christopher 
J. . Dodd of Connecticut to conduct an ex­
haustive search. Based on the recommenda- 
tlons of the American Bar Association, the 
Federal Bar Association, the National Asso- 
elation of Trial lawyers, the Association of 
American Law Schools, the National Dis­
trict Attorneys-Assoclatlon. the American 
Civil Liberties Union, and the NAACP Legal 
Defense Fund, we developed a list of 115 
possible candidates, of whom thirty-four 
were selected for Interviewing, and thirteen 
were actually interviewed. In May the task 
force recommended three of the thirteen. 
When one of the finalists dropped out, my 
choice was narrowed to two,.and I selected 
O. Robert Blakey, then a professor of law at 
the Cornell law School In my judgment.' 
Blakey exemplified the criteria of the Com­
mittee’s search: investigative experience, 
prosecutorial experience, administrative ex­
perience, integrity, and professional stand­
ing. He also had another valuable asset, 
which was knowledge of the peculiar folk­
ways of Congress, for our Investigation was, 
after all, a congressional investigation.

When Congressman Dodd asked Professor 
Blakey if he might be interested in the job, 
he said no, but on reflection he agreed to 
talk to lis. In addition to’meeting with the 
Committee, he had a full and frank discus­
sion with me about what needed to be done 
and how our task should be accomplished. 
(It was during that conversation that the 
decision was reached to announce Professor 
Blakey’s appointment at a:press conference 
in which it would.be announced that there 
would be no more press conferences until 
our report was written, and our work would 
proceed without further public fanfare.) As 
I look back on the course of our work from 
that point—from June 1977 to July 1979—1 
realize how fortunate we were that Profes-summer of 1979, for an undetermined

SL^Sn^8 *m wounded in a sor Blakey changed his mind? Without hte 
f^h?M*^ HI .^®:uBhter. a reporter selfless and untiring efforts, our work could 

N7,;to.‘■’’feting upon the not have come to a successful conclusion.
h I 101,1 of her Now Professor Blakey and his col-

J” f^j1^8 efforts as an anti- league. Richard N. Billings, have written 
F°SSOted from her thelr ®wn book about the death of President" 

^ericanfriehds never mder‘ Kennedy, I would like to this foreward to 
'l°5'Ce 01810011168 ^ thelr w°rk In the context of our investl- 

To ^‘o11’ 81nce much of wh,t they have writ- 
1,6611 ?b e^? expiate, but ten, though not an, is the product of their 

Passion Cubans feel for experience with the Committee. In so doing, 
taken for granted to this however, I want to make it explicit that 

n ,Uke ,Vecian,a’ I believe we while I firmly believe that an those who 
often fail to appreciate our freedom, and we care about truth and lustice must take thiseare about truth arid justice must take this

our resolution, •Which was passed try the

questionK Who assassinated President ken-

assassins have the help of coconspirators? 
How well did Use responsible federal agen­
cies perform before and after the respective 
assassinations? By .December 29. 1978, at 
the final public hearing of the-Committee, I 
ms able to reflect on how well we had an­
swered those questions. We had clearly es- 
tabUshed that the assassin of- Resident 
Kennedy was Lee . Harvey Oswald, 'which 
was to keeping with the findings of the ear­

. Her Mficial investigation. We had, however, 
developed significant new evidence of a con- 
splracy that was afoot In Dallas on Novem­
ber 22,1963, which ran counter to the deter­
mination of the FBI and the Warren Com­
mission in 1964. Further, we had assessed 
the performance of the principal agencies— 
the FBI, the CIA, the Secret Service and 
the Warren Commission—and found that
their performance left Something to be de- 
stred. (There is a certain irony to the fact 
that our findings to the King assassination 
were nearly identical: James Bari Ray was 
therassassin, as the FBI had established; 
there was evidence of a conspiracy, which 
the FBI had failed to consider; and agency 
performance, principally that of the FBI, 
was sadly lacking, both In its treatment of 
Dr. King before his death and in the Investi­
gation of his assassination.) As our public 
hearings ended in December 1978, I noted 
that the -Committee had gone as far as it 
could: we had fulfilled our legislative eHiga- 
tloTLFor the Committee to have proceeded 

, to Investigate the issue of individual respon­
sibility further would have been unneces­
sary and inappropriate: necessary because 
we had learned all that we needed to know 
to recommend legislative reform, which we 
did. Inappropriate because our mandate 
called for fact-finding for the purpose of 
making recommendations, not an assess­
ment of Individual responsibility. As estab- 
llstflng personal guilt is rightfully allocated 
under our Constitution to the executive 
branch and the judiciary, further investiga­
tion by us would have been improper.

I recognized then, of course, that there 
were loose ends at the termination of the 
Committee’s existence, and there still are, 
although I am glad to see that Blakey and 
Billings have made an effort to tie down a 
good many of them. Obviously, it is.to be re­
gretted that there are matters outstanding, 
but as I said during our public hearings, life 
itself has many loose ends. It may well be 
that all the troubling issues that have been 
raised about the deaths of President Kenne­
dy and Dr. King will never be fully resolved, 
for it has been many years since they died. 
Some uncertainty is inevitable In an uncer­
tain world.

Finally, I would like to repeat my closing 
remarks at that last public hearing to De­
cember 1978, for they are still appropriate in 
1980. Never again should our society re­
spond as it did to the aftermath of the as­
sassinations of these two great men, who did 
not receive in death an Investigation com­
mensurate with the dignity of their lives. 
We cannot, of course, rewrite history. We 
cannot bring back John F. Kennedy or 
Martin Isither King, Jr. But the past must 
be a guide for the future. We must promise
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owh/es that this history wfll never be re- pie. particularly impressed with a group of 

witnesses from Clinton, Louisiana, who tea* 
titled to the presence in their town in Sep­
tember 1963 pf Lee Harvey Oswald together 
„ David W. Ferrie, a character from 
New Orleans who was employed by the or­

i ganized crime leader of that city, Carlos 
. Marcello. Frankly, I was prepared not to put 
I much stock in what the people from Clinton 
; had to say, for they had come forward 
. during the discredited investigation of New 
i Orleans District Attorney Jim Garrison in 

1967. (Actually, one of the Clinton wit­
nesses, a Louisiana state legislator, told us. 
he had notified the FBI upon seeing Os­
wald’s picture in the newspaper after the as­
sassination.) But when they appeared 
. « the Committee in executive session 
. .J®78’ Uley 8101011 me »s sturdy, honest 
folk, who had no reason to lie and whose 
testimony was candid and consistent. The 
other evidence that I find most impressive 
as it has been marshaled in this book was 
not all the product of our investigation; 
much of it is presented here for the first 
time. It is the evidence that describes the 
nature of organized crime and then links 
Jack Ruby to organized crime, which in 
turn links organized crime to theassasstoa- 
tjon. Here we see, for example, the role of 
Ruby, minor though it may have been,' in ah 
organized crime activity to Havana to 1959. 
(As a member of the Committee delegation 
that traveled to Cuba, I had a opportunity 
to evaluate th!» tofonhation firsthand.) 
Having established Ruby’s organized crime 
association beyond any doubt, Blakey find 
Billings go on to show that there was ho 
convincing reason, other than his organized 
crime association, for Ruby to murder 
Oswald. I could almost contradict myself 
and say the Ruby link to organized crime is 
the proof of the pudding. Coupled with the 
police tape. It leaves little question of the 
existence of a conspiracy and. who, to ail 
likelihood, engineered it.

One other comment needs to be made 
about this distinctive book. There is an 
abundance of books about the Kennedy as­
sassination, and I have read a good many of 
them. Yet I found this book uncommon, and 
not because I worked with and know the au­
thors. This is a distinctive book because 
Blakey and Billings bring the reader Into 
the reasoning process. Rather than expect 
readers to accept a conclusion at face value. 

- they invite them to make their own evalua­
tion of the evidence. This is an open-minded 
and objective analysis. While not all people 
will agree with all of Ite conclusions, myself 
included, it makes an honest effort to come 
to grips with the evidence. I commend it to 
those who want to learn the truth about the 
events in Dallas in November 1963.

Washington, D.C., July 1980.

Washington, D.C., July 1980.

Statement by Richardson Freyer, 
Chairman, John f. Kennedy Subcommittee

Th® Importance of this book—and it is an 
important book—is that it carries the analy­
sis of the evidence in the assassination Of 
President Kennedy well beyond the point 
that the Committee was able to reach in the 
time available and with the constraints 
under which a committee of Congress must 
work. As to the constraints, this is as it 
should be, for individuals may speak with a 
freedom that a committee of Congress does 
not haves But putting their analysis and 
conclusion aside, the evidence Blakey and 
Billings have marshaled is extremely im­
pressive. I was able to review the facts pre­
sented to the Committee not only as one of 
its members, but as a former federal judge, 
and, as such. I subjected the evidence to the 
severest sort of tests. In the end, I came to 
conclude that it was not a question of 
whether there had been* conspiracy in the 
Kennedy assassination, but a question of 
who the conspirators were. Our conclusion 
was, therefore quite different from the one 
that was reached in 1964.

Much of the evidence that was put before 
. us consisted of the statements of witnesses 

whose reliability had to fie doubted to some 
degree due. to the passage of time, if for nd 
other reason. Witness testimony or circiun- 
stantial evidence alone would not have been 
sufficient to lead me to vote, to reverse the 
historic verdict on President Kennedy's 
death, but there was evidence that did. My 
judgment did hot rest oh it alone, as I care­
fully reviewed the entire record, but the 

_ acoustics evidence was the crucial part that, 
to me, tipped the balance toward conspir­
acy. The acoustics evidence, a tape record- 
mg of the actual Sounds of the assassination 
was most convincing of the presence of two 
gunmen In Dealey Plaza. Its detail fit com­
fortably with the detail of real life. As ana­
lyzed by our panel of experts, the tape ap* 
peared to me to be unassailable: 22 echoes 
of shots from the Texas School Book De­
pository, as well as the grassy knoll, reach­
ing the position of a moving motorcycle, 

_ which was located in photographs just 
where the acoustic experts said it would be. 
Since echoes travel and reflect at known 
speeds, the police tape had to have been re­
corded in Dealey Plaza or Ite exadt acousti­
cal replica, which obviously does not exist. 
In addition, the wave-forms produced by the 
sounds on the tape had the unique signa­
ture of supersonic bullets, and they 
matched in time the physical reactions of 
President Kennedy and Governor Connally, 
as they were recorded In a film of the assas­
sination by Abraham Zapruder. Finally, the 
wave-forms were consistent with the posi­
tion of the motorcycle. Certain spikes on a 
graphical display of the tape coincided with 

“und of 8hote coming over the wind­
shield of Wie motorcycle before it turned 
into Dealey Plaza, and other spikes coin­
cided with shots fired from the side and 
rear of the motorcycle after it had made the 
left-hand turn from Houston onto Elm 
Street. In . view of this kind of evidence. I 
came to believe, as I said at a press confer­
ence on July 15. 1979, the day we released 
our final report, that It would take a greater 
leap of faith to reject what the tape told us 
than to believe it We should not shrink 
from the implications of the evidence.

The hard scientific evidence of a second 
gunman, therefore, altered my perception 
of the witness testimony and the circum­
stantial evidence, which no longer had to be the prow of up Mfc , w „^ K™;-.T>SSS

Memorandum on the Analysis or the 
Acoustical Evidence That Shows That 
Two Shooters Were in Dealey Plaza on 
November 22, 1963 '

(Notre Dame Law School) 
COMMITTEE CONCLUSIONS AND 

recommendations
On January X 1079. the House Select 

Committee on Assassinations reported its 
judgment that “isjclentlfic acoustical evi­
dence establishtedl a high probability 

that, two gunmen fired at President 
John F. Kennedy” in Dealey Plaza, on No­
vember 22. 1963. H. Rep. No. 95-1828, 95th 
Cong. 2nd Sees. p. 1 (1979). The Committee 
also concluded the President was "probably 
assassinated as a result of a conspiracy.” Id.

The Select Committee’s acceptance of the 
acoustical evidence showing two shooters, 
one from the Texas School Book Depository

grassy knoll area to the right front of the 
President was based on a variety of factors. 
See generally id at 65-91. Twenty-one ear 
witnesses, for example, gave testimony in 
1963 that they heard a shot from the grassy 
knoll area, from which the scientific evi­
dence indicated the second shooter fired. In­
cluded among tho^e witnesses were a motor­
cycle policeman to the immediate right Tear 
of the President in the motorcade, a Secret 
Service Agent to the left rear of the Presi­
dent in the motorcade, a Korean War 
combat veteran, who was standing on the 
grassy tooll area in the line of fire, and a 
railroad employee, who was observing the 
motorcade from a railroad overpass immedi­
ately in front of the motorcade, each of 
whom testified that , they heard shots from 
both the Texas School Book Depository and 
the grassy knoll. In addition, at the point 
from which the shooter fired, fresh foot­
prints In the damp earth were found behind 
the high picket fence on the knoll, and 
smoke was seen and smelled near the fence 
at the time of firing. Finally, a policeman 
immediately after the firing stopped a man 
leaving the picket fence area, who falsely 
identified himself as a Secret Service Agent.

The acoustical evidence, which consisted 
of a recording of the sounds of the assassi­
nation accidentally broadcast by a motorcy­
cle policeman in the Plaza to the poUce dis­
patcher and recorded on the poUce dispatch 
dictabelt. was also independently corrobo­
rated by other scientific evidence. Photo­
graphs were located of the motorcycle po­
liceman in the precise position that sounds 
on the dictabelt indicated he should be in. A 
film of the events of the assassination 
showed action in the film that confirmed 
that the shooting was occurring at the times 
in the film and from the directions that the 
dictabelt indicated. Timing and direction 
were also corroborated by ballistics evi­
dence, neutron activation analysis, and the 
work of a forensic pathology panel that re­
viewed films and x-rays of the President’s 
body.

After making its findings on the maimer 
of the President’s death, the Committee rec­
ommended that the Department of Justice 
and the National Science Foundation "make 
a study of the theory and application of the 
principles of acoustics to forensic questions,- 
using the materials available In the assassi­
nation of President John F. Kennedy as a 
case study.” Id at 9.

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION STUDY

On August 14. 1980, the National Science 
Foundation authorized 823,360 for a study 
(Independent tests were not contemplated) 
by the National Academy of Sciences on the 
work of the Select. Committee. The study 
was to be headed by Professor Norman S. 
Ramsey of Harvard. The report by the 
panel was due in January, 1981. The expec­
tation now. however, is that It will not be 
completed until the end of March or the 
early part of April. 1981.

On December 1. 1980. a report of the 
Technical Services Division of the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation on the work of the 
Select Committee was released to the 
public. See 126 Cong. Rec. H 12369 (daily ed. 
December 11, 1980). The 22 page report, 
which was not accompanied by supporting 
documentation and did not reSt on inde­
pendent empirical work by the FBI on the 
dictabelt or sounds in Deally Plaza, found 
that the conclusions of the Select Commit­
tee were "invalid,” since it was neither 
shown that gunshots were on the dictabelt 
nor that sounds originating in the Plaza ' 
were recorded on it

According to the FBI report, the scientific 
analysis rehed upon by the Committee nec-
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essarily rested on the authenticity of the 
dictabelt, that is. upon findings that the 
sounds on the dictabelt identified as. gun­
shots by the committee originated from 

5 within the Plaza and that the sounds them- 
f selves were gunshots. According to the FBI 
i report, these two elements could be proven 
4 if it could be acoustically shown that the in- 
£ formation the committee analyzed was 
| unique to Dealey Plaza “to the exclusion of 
g all other locations” or that "eyewitness tes- 
£ timony" could be adduced Independently to 
i establish them. The reportthen noted that 
i other work done by the FBI hi connection 
2'. with' the shootout betweenthe Communist 
£ Workers Party and the KKK in November. 
| 1979, in Greensboro. N.C., had found a shot
i whose echo pattern in fact matched; the air 
f leged grassy knoll shot within the same 

degree of tolerance as that accepted by the 
J committee fgr its match. Consequently, the

FBI report concluded that the two dements 
could not be shown acoustically since It was 
clear that Greensboro, N.C., was not Dallas, 

; Texas. The FBI report then simply asserted 
that “no conclusive” eyewitness testimony 
had been presented to the Committee that 
the motorcycle microphone was recording in 

' Dealey. Plaza and that shots were in fact re­
corded on it.

COMMENT OH FBI CRITIQUX "

The FBI report on the work of the Select 
Committee fundamentally misunderstood1 
The scientific analysis relied upon by the 
committee: it did not make a finding of 
identity (100 percent) between an alleged 
shot from the grassy knoll and a known 
shot from it; the finding was of a 90 percent 
probability of a match. Stated another way. 

' the/ Committee's study recognized that 
there was. in fact, a 5 perecent chance that 
the information of the dictabelt did not rep­
resent a gunshot from the grassy knolL (A 
finding of identity (100 percent) was .not 
practical because of the imprecise character 
of the dispatcher’s recording equipment.) 
Consequently, the purported “find” by the 
FBI of a match from Greensboro, Nil, did 
not undermine the Committee’s' scientific 
analysis.' Hence the statistical probability 
of 95 percent was. hot altered by the pur­
ported finding of an obviously mistaken 
match, and the FBI’s assertion that the 
Committee’s acoustical analysis was “Inval­
id” does not withstand close analysis. The 
Committee’s final acceptance of the 95 per­
cent side of the probability rather than the 
5 percent side, moreover, rested on the co-

' The most charttable reason that ean be offered 
on why the FBI report misunderstood the scientific 
and analytical work of the Select Committee is that 
the Bureau's technicians were inexperienced with 
the sophisticated statistical and acoustical proce­
dures employed by the Committee’s scientists. 
(Until the work of the Committee, the Bureau had 
never examined similar acoustical issues.) In addi­
tion. for reasons that remain obscure, the Bureau 
declined to work with the Committee’s scientists in 
the preparation of its critique of their work, prefee- 
rint to review it in secret and to release the critique 
publically before the Committee's scientists had 
the opportunity to comment on possible misunder­
standings. A less charitable comment would note 
the apparent Institutional unwillingness hi 1980 to' 
admit thaKthe FBI failed to investigate adequately 
the death of the President In 1964,

'According to. the FBI. its “find" matched a 88 
mllitseeond echo pattern used by the Committee’s, 
scientists. In fact, the SO millisecond echo pattern 
was only used by the Committee's scientists in the 
preliminary study. The FBI did not, therefore, 
assert that the 30 millisecond echo pattern railed 
on by the -Committee for Its final judgment 
matched the Greensboro shot. Because the time 
span (SO vs. 30) Is much smaller, the possibility Is 
much higher of finding another match falling 
within the H margln of error. It remains to be 
seen, therefore, if a "mistaken match" ean be found 
for the full 30 mlllUecond echo pattern.

herence, noted above, of the scenario of the 
assassination (timing and direction of the 
shots) portrayed on the dictabelt. with the 
available scientific and other evidence estab­
lishing what happened in. the Plaza, a co­
herence not even addressed, much less re­
futed, by theFBI report.’ Finally, the asser­
tion by the FBI that there was “no conclu­
sive" non-acousttcal evidence that would in­
dependently establish the authenticity of 
the dictabelt and the Committee’s analysis 
of it was' nothing more than an assertion. 
Not only did it ignore the evidence noted 
above, seemingly, too, it necessarily rested 
on the underlying assumption that only 
direct' evidence can be used to authenticate 
the dictabelt, that is, testimony immediately 
touching oh how and what the microphone 
was recording. In fact, the authenticity of 
the dictabelt obviously can be and was es­
tablished by the abundance ri circumstan­
tial evidence that corroborated the-version 
of the assassination recorded on the dicta­
belt.4—G. Robert Blakey, Professor of Law, 
February 17,1981.

Bolt, Beranek & Newman, Inc..
Cambridge, Mass, March 27,1981, 

Hon. Lours Stokes, 
House of Representatives, 
Washington, D.C.

Dear Congressman Stokes: We received on 
2 December 1980 the copy of the FBI review 
of “The Acoustical Reports Published by 
the House Select Committee on Assassina­
tions” that you graciously sent us. As we de­
clared in our joint public statement of 4 De­
cember 19&0, a copy of which is attached, we 
stand firm tn our conviction that our find­
ings are logically and scientifically correct 
and we disagree completely with the conclu­
sions of the FBI. Their review of Our work 
found that we “. . . did not scientifically 
prove that a gunshot was fired by a second 
gunman from the grassy knoll area of 
Dealey Plaza ...," and that we “... dfd not 
scientifically prove that the Dictabelt re­
cording of Channel 1 of the Dallas Police 
Department radio system contains the 
sounds of gunshots . . .". We have studied 
the FBI's report and we find that the FBI 
failed to understand either the methods 
that we used or the nature of the problem 
that was pored to us. As a result, in their 
report the FBI asserts premises that are ir­
relevant. n^akes deductions from our report 
that are incorrect, and presents findings 
that are unsupported.

The House Select Committee on Assassi­
nations (HSCA), under your chairmanship, 
selected Bolt, Beranek & Newman, Inc. 
(BBN), to analyze a Dictabelt recorded by 
the Dallas Police Department (DPD) on No­
vember 22. 1963 to see If it contained sounds 
associated with President John F. Kenne­
dy's assassination. This DPD Dictabelt con­
tains recordings of transmissions from a 
mobile police unit whose microphone was on 
before, during and after the assassination. 
BBN was asked to determine if the mobile

'Bertrand Russell.'The Problems of PMlosophv p, 
140. dealt with coherence in ’ thia fashion: 'Tn 
regard to probable opinion, we can derive great as­
sistance from coherence, which we rejected as the 
definition of truth, but may often use aa a criterion. 
A body of Individually probable opinions, if they 
are mutually coherent, become more probable than 
any one of them would be Individually. It is in this 
way that many scientific hypotheses acquire their 
probability. They fit Into a coherent system of 
probable opinions, and thus became more probable 
than they would be tn isolation * • •"

♦That an FBI technical report would even ImpHe- 
itiy suggest that a fact may be shown only by direct 
evidence is Ironic, as It "is now wen established that 
circumstantial evidence is no less probative than 
direct evidence • • •" Oniiett State* v. Dodge, 838 
F.2d 770,787 (Sth Clr. 1970X Webster. J.)

police unit with the open microphone was in 
Dealey Plaza during the assassination; If so, 
had the sounds of shots been recorded: the 
number of shots and the Interval between 
them: the origin of the shots and the type 
of weapon used.

BBN found that the recorded sounds on 
the DPD' Dictabelt. in particular four 
groups of impulses, were consistent with the 
sounds that would have been recorded from 
a transmitter with an open microphone - 
moving in Dealey Plaza, if four gunshots 
were fired (luring the assassination in a spe­
cific sequence. BBN found the sequence and 
the origin of gunshots, and the path of the 
moving microphone that are needed to pro­
duce the sounds actually recorded by the 
DPD. The combination of these findings, as 
well as the timing of the impulse groups on 
the DPD Dictabelt, led BBN to conclude 
that It is very unlikely that the four impulse 
groups recorded on the DPD Dictabelt could 
have been caused by another source.

Subsequent to the BBN analysis, 'the 
HSCA examined films of the motorcade 
that depicted, at the time of the assassins-* 
tion, the part of the motorcade route where 
BBN had found that the mobile police unit 
with the open microphone would have to be. 
The HSCA observed In these films that 
there was indeed a. motorcyle following the 
path described by the BBN analysis, even 
though the motorcade order of vehicles de­
scribed in the Warren Commission report 
had hot placed any motorcycles near that 
path during the time span of the assassina­
tion. Moreover, the HSCA concluded that 
the specific time sequence of the probable 
gunshots matches closely the time sequence 
with which the occupants of the presiden­
tial limousine reacted to the shots.

Although the HSCA found that the BBN 
findings were corroborated by other non- 
acoustical evidence, the BBN analysts left 
some uncertainty about the- number of 
shots and their origin. BBN did not prove, 
nor did it attempt to prove, that the sounds 
recorded on the DPD Dictabelt were pro­
duced by gunfire inr Dealey Plaza. The BBN 
analytis did not exclude the possibility that 
some unknown source could produce im­
pulse sounds similar to those observed on 
the DPD Dictabelt. To reduce the uncer­
tainty about the third impulse group. Pro­
fessor Mark R. Weiss and Mr. Ernest Asch- 
kenasy were asked to examine the sounds in 
that group and, if possible, establish with 
greater confidence if this impulse group cor­
responds to a gunshot sound generated on 
the "grassy knoll” of Dealey Plaza during 
the assassination of President Kennedy. To 
this end. Professor Weiss and Mr.' Aschken- 
asy (WAA) took a different approach to the 
study of those sound patterns on the DPD 
Dictabelt that BBN thought might repre­
sent the third of four shots.

In effect, W&A were asked that if a gun 
had been fired on the “grassy knoll” on that 
occasion, would the sounds of the gunshot 
as received in Dealey Plaza, and transmitted 
and recorded by the DPD radio dispatch 
system resemble thethird group of impulses 
observed on the DFD recording. This ques­
tion can be answered unambiguously if the 
position of the shooter and the location of 
the microphone that picked up the sounds 
were known, and all of the components-of 
the DPD radio system were known and 
available. While none of the listed facts are 
known for the case, W&A were able to use 
an elementary method, based on fundamen­
tal principles of acoustics, that yields a nu­
merical probability of whether the DPD im- 
pluse group corresponds to gunshot sounds 
generated on the “grassy knoll". W&A gath­
ered and examined all the available infor­
mation about Dealey Plaza and the events .
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that-occurred there, and about the DPD 
radio dispatch system. WW then isolated a 
reliable measurement that could beused to 
compare gunshot sounds to the DPD im­
pulse group in question. Applying this mea- 
'surement to an assumed gunshot, for the 
conditions given in the question, and to the 
DPD impulse group, W&A were able to 
compare the two and derive a probability of 
correspondence. ’

The approach taken by BBN and W&A is 
appropriate, relevant and correct for the 
task. Either the FBI failed to understand or 
chose to ignore it, since It is not included 
with the methods listed in the FBI’s report. 
On page 18 of their repbrt, the .FBI asserts 
that “there are at least two known acousti­
cal and one non-acoustical method that 
could determine whether the four specified 
impluslve patterns on the DPD recording 
originated from Dealey Raza, Dallas, Texas, 
diuring the Presidential assassination on 
November 22. 1963.” The methods that are 
proposed by the FBI demonstrate that they 
failed to understand the nature of the task 
since these methods are inappropriate for 
the problem at hand. '

The first method proposed by the FBI is 
to show that "the other information bn the 
DPD recording just before, during and just 
after the pertinent time period was exclu­
sively from Dealey Plaza.” This method is 
appropriate only if all of the sounds record­
ed in the pertinent time interval were trans­
mitted by the same one microphone. Howev­
er, as was stated in our reports, sounds 
transmitted by other microphones also were 
recorded in this interval. Therefore, this 
method cannot be used to show that the 
sounds in this interval originated exclusive­
ly in Dealey Plaza. The FBI acknowledges 
that this method cannot be used. On page 
14 of their report, they state that "The first 
acoustical method cannot be used to vali­
date that the designated impulsive informa­
tion originated In Dealey Plaza, since other 
sounds during the pertinent portion either 
did not originate from Dealey Plaza or their 
origin is unknown.” Yet, after providing 
some examples of these sounds, the FBI 
then concludes that, "... this method does 
not show that the designated patterns origi­
nated from Dealey Plaza, and in fact, re­
flects contrary information.” Since a 
method that “... cannot be used to validate 
that the designated Impulsive information 
originated in Dealey Plaza. ..” inevitably 
will fail to do so, the first part of the FBI’s 
conclusion is meaningless. The second part 
of the conclusion, in which-the FBI states 
that this method “.. . in fact, reflects con­
trary information.” implies that the method 
somehow reflects evidence that the impulse 
sounds did not originate in Dealey Plaza. 
This part of the conclusion is entirely un­
supported. Neither the failure of this partic­
ular method, to demonstrate that the stuck ' 
microphone was in Dealey Plaza, nor the 
evidence that transmissions from micro­
phones outside Dealey Plaza also were re­
corded in the pertinent segment of the DPD 
recording indicates that the stuck micro­
phone was not in Dealey Plaza or in any 
way provides any Information that reflects 
on where the microphone actually was lo­
cated.

The second method proposed by the FBI 
is to prove “that the (impulsive) patterns 
represent sounds from Dealey Plaza if the 
information being analyzed is unique to 
Dealey Plaza to the exclusion of all other 
locations within the range of the DPD radio 
system.” This method cannot be used even 
if it can be shown that the sequences of 
echoes for gunshots fired in Dealey Plaza 
are unique to that locale. Jhe noise on the 
DPD Dictabelt, the uncertainty In the loca­
tion of the moving microphone and. in the

case of the "grassy knoll”, the uncertainty 
in the location of the gun preclude the use 
of uniqueness as a basis for determining the 
origin of the recorded impulses. BBN was 
able io use the principle of uniqueness in 
the analysis Of recorded gunshot sounds 
when they determined the location of the 
weapons that fired the first several shots at 
Kent State University in 1970. They were 
able to do so in that instance because they 
had prior knowledge of where the recording 
microphone had been located. No such prior 
information is available for the microphone 
that recorded the sounds on the DPD Dicta­
belt.

In their repbrt to the HSCA, W&A pre­
sented the concept nf uniqueness to illus­
trate the relationship between the location 
of a gun, a microphone, a group of echo pro­
ducing surfaces and the echo pattern that 
will be recorded by a microphone. Apparent­
ly. the FBI misunderstood this part of the 
W&A report since they thought that this il­
lustration represents the second method 
proposed by the FBI. This is seen bn page 
14 of the FBI report where they state that 
"the second acoustical method utilizing the 
alleged uniqueness of-the designated sound 
as applied by Weiss and Aschkenasy, also 
cannot validate that the impulsive informa­
tion Is from Dealey Plaza.”

The only scientifically valid approach 
that can be taken for the problem at hand is 
Incorporated in the methods used by BBN 
and W&A in their analysis, yet excluded by 
the FBI. This approach establishes a basis 
for calculating the probability that echoes 
of the gunshots fired in Dealey Plaza and 
the specified Impulse groups on the DPD 
Dictabelt represent the same event. As it 
happens, the analysis reveals a high prob­
ability that the microphone that transmit­
ted the sounds heard oh the DPD Dictabelt 
was moving in Dealey Plaza at the time of 
the assassination, and that the recording 
contains the sounds of gunfire. The analysis 
also show# that, with high probability', the 
third group of impulses identified by BBN 
corresponds to a gunshot sound fired on the 
"grassy knoll” of Dealey Plaza.

We have attached a memorandum detail­
ing more fully our disagreements with the 
FBI. We welcome responsible inquiries from 
any concerned party and hope that this 
letter, and the memorandum will dispel any 

. further confusion.
Respectfully yours,

James E. Barger, chief scientist. Bolt, 
Beranek & Newman, Mark R. Weiss, 
professor. Department of Computer 
Science, Queens College of C.UK.Y4 
Ernest Aschkenasy, consultant. New 
York. N.Y.

- Memorandum
To: Hon. Louis Stokes, Member of Congress, 

House of Representatives, Washington, 
D.C. ;

From: Dr. James E. Barger, Dr. Theodore L. 
Rhyne, Mr. Edward C. Schmidt, Dr. 
Jared J. Wolf, Bolt. Beranek and 
Newman Inc. Cambridge.-Mass. 02138.

Date: March 27,1981.
This memorandum details our disagree­

ments with the FBI critique, found on pages 
13 through 20 of their review, of our tests 
on the Dallas Police Department recording.

On page 13 the FBI asserts that there are 
"at least” three known methods that could 
determine whether the four impulse pat­
terns we found originated from Dealey 
Raza. Their subsequent discussion of their 
three methods, to the exclusion of the 
method we actually used, does not consti­
tute a rational or an effective critique of the 
findings we obtained from the DPD record­
ing.

First, the RBI observes that we might 
have shown that all recorded events both 
just preceding and just following the four 
Impulse patterns originated in Dealey Plaza. 
We had found that this otherwise sensible 
method could not be relied upon because we 
were able to sh6w that not even all recorded 
events during the time span of the four im- 
pluse patterns originated from the same 
radio transmitter. Since all of these trans­
mitters might not be co-located, we could 
not assume that an recorded events came 
from the same place. Even though we did 
not employ this first method of the three 
proposed by the FBI, they evidently did— 
for they conclude that this method ",.. re­
flects contrary information”. We interpret 
this conclusion of the FBI to mean that the 
presence of transmitters with unknown lo- . 
cation diminishes the likelihood that the 
transmitter that recorded the impulses was s 
tn Dealey Plaza. Thus, their first method 
simply is a definition of the problem to be 
solved. Our method was actually to solve 
the problem. We determined where in ; 
Dealey Plaza the transmitter would have 
had to be if it were io have recorded the as- J 
sassination gunfire sounds as they appeared ; 
on the DPD recording. It was found later by ' 
the HSCA that there was a motorcycle with , 
a radio transmitter where we had found it < 
must be. We are unaware of any contrary ’ 
Information contained in our results, and we 
believe that the FBI conclusion is unsup- ; 
ported.

Second, the FBI observes that we might 
have shown that the impulse patterns being 
analysed were unique to Dealey Plaza. This 
method is the one that we developed when • 
in 1976 we determined from recorded sounds i 
at Kent State University the locations of 
the weapons that fired the first several $ 
shots back tn 1970 by Ohio National 
Guardsmen. Analysis of the DPD recording ; 
did not admit a direct use of this method, 
because we had no prior knowledge about 
where the DPD recording microphone may 
have been—as we did for the Kent State re­
cording.

Our method for coping with this problem 
Involved two techniques. The first tech­
nique (during the August 1978 acoustical re­
construction in Dealey Plaza) was to record 
the sound of the test shots at 36~different 
locations along the motorcade route. We 
then compared the DPD recording Impulse 
patterns with each test shot recorded at 
each location to see if any combinations of 
test shot and microphone location showed a 
high correlation. We further recognized 
that even the 36 microphone locations that 
we used would not show precisely all the 
unique Impulse patterns that are possible, 
because of the time it takes for acoustic im­
pulses to travel from one microphone to the 
next. Therefore our second technique was 
to add a margin of uncertainty io the test 
shot echo patterns. This margin was to 
accept the coincidence of an impulse in a £ 
DPD impulse pattern with an echo in our | 
reconstruction pattern if the .two occurred '* 
with ±6 msec of each other. This process j 
destroyed the uniqueness of our reconstruc- ? 
tlon echo patterns, but the 6 msec coincl- j 
dence margin resulted in only a small in- I 
crease in the likelihood that unrelated \ 
sources of impulses could generate patterns 1 
that would match the Dealey Plaza pat- $ 
terns. We demonstrated this fact by calcu- i 
lating that' only 13 out of about 2,000 Im- . 
pulse, patterns produced by a random proc- 5 
ess would, on the average, match the four 
DPD recorded impluse patterns. We chose 
the random process for which all possible ' ' 
combinations of impulse locations in a finite 5 
number of time windows are equally likely 
to occur. We believe that this random proc-
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ess models quite -well all possible permuta­
tions of the locations of echo-producing ob­
jects. ,

But the key to our method, and the 
source of our method’s power to discrimi­
nate between gunfire recorded by a micro­
phone in Dealey Plaza and any other source 
of impulses on the DPD recording, was to 
test for the DPD microphone trajectory. We 
found that the locations of our microphones 
that picked up the reconstruction echo pat­
terns that did match with four time-ordered 
impulse patterns' on the DPD recording 
moved in the direction of the motorcade 
and at its rate of advance. Thereby, what we, 
gave up in uniqueness of the reconstruction 
echo patterns we gained back by requiring a 
coherent microphone trajectory as an im­
portant, and obviously necessary require­
ment., The odds are vanishingly small that 
any process could generate four different 
impulse patterns in a time sequence that 
causes each one to match a different recon­
struction echo pattern measured at each of 
four microphones separated by the three 
distances dictated by the speed of the mo­
torcade. J..

The most meaningful and the most direct 
method of verifying whether we have 
proved that-the impulse patterns on the 
DPD recording are caused by gunfire in 
Dealey Plaza is to examine Independent evi­
dence about the motorcycle trajectory and 
about the shot timing sequence that pur 
analysis revealed. We did not hypothesize 
this trajectory, nor. did we hypothesize the 
timing sequence. The HSCA did find that 
both the motorcycle trajectory and the shot 
sequence we found were consistent with in­
dependent photographic evidence.

Finally, the FBI asserts that the third of 
three methods that could determine wheth­
er the DPD "sound patterns that we tested 
originated, in Dealey Plaza requires proof 
that someone saw a stuck microphone on 
Channel 1 in Dealey Plaza. We know only of 
the testimony of Officer McLain that his 
microphone often stuck open, and that it 
might have been on Channel 1. Therefore 
we did not devise our analysis on the basis 
of this method.

On pages 14 and IS, the FBI report finds 
that the 50 msec* time span analyzed by 
Weiss and Aschkenasy does not provide 
compelling evidence of a match. We agree. 
We based our assessment of the third-shot 
match achieved by Weiss and Aschkenasy 
on their finding that 10 coincidences oc­
curred between the 14 DPD Impulses and 
the 12 reconstruction echoes that occurred 
in a 320 msec time span. The FBI offers no 
explanation for this occurrence, which is 
most unlikely if the source of both impulse 
patterns was not a common one. The 
common source would have to be'gunfire in 
Dealey Plaza because that is how the recon­
struction echoes were obtained.

On page 15 the FBI report asserts that 
the record sound of a gunshot at Greens­
boro. N.C., was found to represent "The 
same impulsive pattern sound on the DPD 
recording during the Presidential assassina­
tion in November, 1963". The report says 
that a probability of 95% or better can be 
assigned to the similarity between the 
Greensboro pattern and the alleged third 
shot pattern on the DPD recording. The 
data to back up this statement are not con­
tained in the FBI report. We don’t know 
how many impulses are present in the first 
320 msec of the Greensboro, impulse pat­
tern. We do not know how many of these 
impulses are coincident with the 14 DPD 
impulses. Nor do we know what time- 
window was used for judging coincidence.

- Because the data are not revealed by the 
FBI. we cannot critique their conclusion 
that the two Impulse patterns represent

each other to better than 95% probability. 
But even if the data were found to baci^ up 
the 95% probability asserted .by the FBI, no 
one could conclude from that fact that our 
technique was invalid. If the FBI tested 
each of their .89 echo patterns against the 
third impulse pattern on the DPD record­
ing, they should expect to find about two 
such matches assuming that the Greens­
boro echo patterns are about 320 ms long. 
One cannot tell how long are the patterns 
in the FBI report, for they have omitted the 
time scale on the waveforms they do show.

On pages 17 and 18 the FBI offers some 
data (without time scale) from Greensboro 
to show that other Impulsive sounds pro­
duce echo patterns, besides gunshot. Of 
Course all sounds produce echoes from any 
impedance discontinuity—whether impul­
sive sounds.or continuous sounds. Our anal­
ysis did not in any way assume that because 
there were echo patterns, therefore the fa­
vored sources of these sounds were gun­
shots.

Neither BBN, nor Weiss and Aschkenasy 
used the. presence or absence of a shock 
wave to determine if an impulsive sound was 
a gunshot. It would be wrong to do this. The 
shock wave occurs only if the projectile is 
supersonic, and only then if the angle be­
tween the line connecting the observer to 
the weapon and the projectile trajectory is 
less than the complementary of the . Mach 
angle.

On page 20 the FBI report lists five topics 
that they describe as problem areas and in­
consistencies. Topic 1 refers to Table 4 of 
the W&A report, in which predicted gun­
shot echoes are arranged alongside those 
impulses in the Dictabelt recording that are 
closest to them In time. It certainly is true 
..that several of the impulses that are listed 
in this table are less than one millisecond 
apart. The sentence cited , by the FBI, in 
which W&A state that impulses that are so 
closely spaced are treated as one impulse is 
not inconsistent with these data since the 
statement refers to the method that Was 
used to count the number of impulses that 
exceed the noise threshold. This is made ex­
plicit by the very next sentence, in which 
the number of such impulses is specified.

Topic 2 refers to the fact that BBN dem­
onstrated that loud impulses such as gun­
shots are distorted upon transmission 
through the DPD radio system. We demon- 
strated this to show why we would base our 
analysis technique solely on the time-of-ar- 
rival of an impulse—and not on the shape or 
amplitude of the impulse. The time that 
each impulse is transmitted by the radio, is 
hot distorted by the fact that the impulse is 
loud; only its shape and its amplitude.

Topic 3 observes that no microscopic ex- 
amination of the DPD dictabelt was con­
ducted to see if the patterns analyzed are 
caused by surface imperfections. Of course 
the patterns we analyzed are caused by sur­
face impressions—that is how the recorder 
works. We did not find periodic Impulses, 
such as would be caused by surface 
scratches that span more than one groove. 
We did find more loud Impulses on the DPD 
recording than we found In the reconstruc­
tion impulse patterns. These were due to a 
variety of causes, including keying tran­
sients and probably surface imperfections as 
well. To suggest that the entire impulse pat­
terns were caused by surface imperfections 
simply is to describe the physical manifesta­
tion, of any unknown source of noise. We 

s have tested the sensitivity of our technique 
to noise with our calculations to show the 
likelihood that noise will resemble gunshot 
echo patterns In Dealey Plaza.

Topic 4 questions BBN.’s treatment of the- 
matches between reconstruction echo pat­
terns and DPD recording impulse patterns

that do not lie on the about 11 mph locus. 
We agree that three or four loci could be 
about equally accepted, If there were no 
other evidence .to help choose between 
them. However,-the motorcycle noise is seen 
to-diminish about four seconds before the . 
spot where we. have found that it was at the 
instant of the first Shot. Since the motorcy­
cle was then approaching a 120* left turn, it 
would hive to slow down at that time. The 
locus we chose is the only one that allows 
for that. Finally, photographic evidence was 
found by the HJ5CA that showed a motorcy­
cle on the locus that we had chosen. That 
independent verification is the best reason 
for rejecting as false alarms the matches - 
found along other loci.

Topic 5 deserves more explanation than 
has been given by Weiss and Aschkenasy. 
The slight time stretch Introduced by them 
is more rigorous than the FBI supposes. We 
were unable to determine the exact record­
ed time scale because there were few clues. 
But an exact time scale could not be deter­
mined anyway because there is always a 
flutter induced in the time scale by the re­
corder speed fluctuations. We did determine 
that the DPD recorded time scale was 5 per­
cent slow, ± about 1 percent. Scientific pro­
cedure requires that all possible time scales, 
within the range of possibility that we had 
'determined, be searched to see if any time » 
scale within this range produces a good J 
match. Thus Weiss and Aschkenasy did < 
search these values and they found a value ;
of 4.3 percent that fits in the range extend- (
Ing from 4.0 percent to 6,0 percent that we 
had determined.

In summary, we do not find any insights, ; 
data, or arguments in the FBI report that • 
we believe will support their conclusions i 
that pur tests of the DPD recording are in- । 
valid. Is

THE LATE JOSEPH T. POWER
(Mr. DERWINSKI .asked and was 

given permission to address the House ; 
for 1 mlBute and to revise and extend ; 
his remarks.)

Mr. DERWINSKI. Mr. Speaker, it is 
my sad duty to inform my colleagues 
of the death of the well-represented 
president of the Operative Plasterers 
and Cement Masons International As­
sociation, Joseph T. Power. Mr. Power 
died of cancer this past Monday, April 
27, at his home in Falls Church, Va., • 
at the age of 61.

Joe Power, a Chicago native, joined 
the union there, and came to Wash- J 
ington in 1960 after being elected ex- I 
ecutive vice-president of the Operative j 
Plasterers and Cement Masons. In $ 
1963, Mr. Power was appointed general v 
executive board member of the Inter- • 
national Association, and went on to ? 
become the president of the associ­
ation in 1970. ,

As president of the association, Joe ■ 
Power had worked closely with both J 
President Carter and President Ford. I 
His contribution to the lives of work- J 
Ing people was praised by President 
Reagan only last month. “Mr. Power has s
set ah important example,” President 5 
Reagan skid. “His leadership and in- £ 
struction have made it possible for the * 
members of his union to find a good . 
life for themselves and their families. - 
He should be proud.” <




